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UNITED STATES OF AM EIUCA

VS .

TAN ISHA W RIGHT

and

SHALAM AR M AJOR,

Defendants.

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

CO UNT I

(Access Device Fraud, 18 U.S.C. j 1029(a)(3))

On or about June 27, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIG HT,

did, knowingly and with intent to defraud, possess tiheen or m ore unauthorized access devices,

affecting interstate commerce, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1029(a)(3).
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COUNT 2

(Identity Theft, 18 U.S.C. j 1028(a)(7))

On or about M ay 8, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGHT,

did knowingly possess, without lawful authority, in and affecting interstate commerce, a means

of identification of another person, that is, the nam e, date of birth, and social security num ber of

an individual bearing the initials (1E.E.,'' any one of which would constitute a violation, with the

intent to commit, and to aid and abet, and in connection with, any unlawf'ul activity that

constitutes a violation of Federal law, that is, Theh of Public M oney, in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 641, and as a result of the offense obtained anything of value

aggregating $ 1 ,000 or more during any one year period, a11 in violation of Title 1 8, United States

Code, Sections 1028(a)(7) and 2.

CO UNT 3

(Theh of Public Money - 18 U.S.C. j 641)

On or about M ay l 6, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southem  District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGH T,

did knowingly and willfully receive, conceal and retain stolen property of the United States, that

is, a $6,433.00 United States income tax refund issued by the Department of the Treasury, a

department of the United States govenunent, with the intent to convert it to her use or gain, in

violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 641 .
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COUNT 4

(Aggravated ldentity Theft - 18 U.S.C. j 1028A)

On or about M ay 16, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIG HT,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 641, that is,

Theft of Public M oney, as charged in Count 3 of this Indictment, did knowingly possess and use

without lawful authority a means of identification of another person, that is, the name and

account number of an individual bearing the initials t$J.R.,'' any one of which would constitute a

violation, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028A(a)(1).

COUNT S

(ldentity Theft, 18 U.S.C. j 1028(a)(7))

On or about M ay 1 8, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISH A W RIGHT,

did knowingly possess, without lawful authority, in and affecting interstate commerce, a means

of identification of another person, that is, the nmzw, date of birth, and social security number of

an individual bearing the initials k1G.V.,'' any one of which would constitute a violation, with the

intent to comm it, and to aid and abet, and in connection with, any unlawful activity that

constitutes a violation of Federal law, that is, Theft of Public M oney, in violation of Title l 8,

United States Code, Section 641, and asa result of the offense obtained anything of value

aggregating $1,000 or more during any one year period, al1 in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Sections 1028(a)(7) and 2.
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COUNT 6

(TheR of Public Money - 18 U.S.C. j 641)

On or about M ay 3 1, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGHT,

did knowingly and willfully receive, conceal and retain stolen property of the United States, that

is, a $5,097.00 United States income tax refund issued by the Department of the Treasury, a

department of the United States government, with the intent to convert it to her use or gain, in

violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 641.

COUNT 7

(Aggravated ldentity Theft - 18 U.S.C. j 1028A)

On or about M ay 3 1 , 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGHT,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 641, that is,

Theft of Public M oney, as charged in Count 6 of this Indictment, did knowingly possess and use

without lawful authority a means of identitication of another person, that is, the name and

account num ber of an individual bearing the initials ç1L.S.,'' any one of which would constitute a

violation, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028A(a)(1).
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COUNT 8

(ldentity Theft, 18 U.S.C. j 1028(a)(7))

On or about May 27, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southem District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIG HT,

did knowingly possess, without lawful authority, in and affecting interstate comm erce, a means

of identification of another person, that is, the name, date of birth, and social security num ber of

an individual bearing the initials ttC.S.,'' any one of which would constitute a violation, with the

intent to comm it, and to aid and abet, and in connection with, any unlawful activity that

constitutes a violation of Federal law, that is, Theft of Public M oney, in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Sedion 641, and as a result of the offense obtained anything of value

aggregating $1,000 or more during any one year period, all in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Sections 1028(a)(7) and 2.

COUNT 9

(Theû of Public Money - 18 U.S.C. j 641)

On or about June 6, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGH T,

did knowingly and willfully receive, conceal and retain stolen property of the United States, that

is, a $8,083.00 United States income tax refund issued by the Department of the Treasury, a

department of the United States govenlment, with the intent to convert it to her use or gain, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 641.
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COUNT 10

(Aggravated ldentity Thefl - 18 U.S.C. j 1028A)

On or about June 6, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGHT,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 641, that is,

Theft of Public M oney, as charged in Count 9 of this lndictment, did knowingly possess and use

without lawful authority a means of identification of another person, that is, the name and

account number of an individual bearing the initials tiA.W .,'' any one of which would constitute a

violation, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028A(a)(1).

COUNT 11

(Theft of Mail - 18 U.S.C. j 1708)

On or about June 27, 2012, in Broward County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

TANISHA W RIGH T,

did unlawfully have in her possession, any letter and m ail and any article contained therein,

which had been stolen and taken, knowing the same to have been stolen and taken, in violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1708.
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COUNT 12

(HIPAA - 42 U.S.C. j 1320d-6)

Beginning in or about January 2012, through at least June 27, 2012, the exact dates being

unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southem District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendant,

SHALAM AR M AJO R,

then an em ployee of a health care provider, knowingly and without authorization, disclosed and

caused to be disclosed to another person individually identifiable health infonuation relating to

an individual, that is, patient names, dates of birth, and Social Security numbers, with the intent

to sell, transfer, use, and cause to be used, individually identitiable health infonnation, for

personal gain, in violation of Title 42, United States Code, Sections 1320d-6(a)(3) and (b)(3) and

Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

CO UNT 13

(CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FALSE CLAIM S - 18 U.S.C. j 286)

Begilming in or about January, 2012 and continuing until in or about June 27, 2012, the

exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Broward and Palm Beach Counties, in the

Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

TANISHA W RIGHT

and

SHALAM AR M AJO R,

did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree with each other to defraud

the United States by obtaining and aiding to obtain the paym ent or allowance of false, fctitious,

and fraudulent claims.
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OBJECT OF THE CONSPIM CY

lt was the object of the conspiracy that the defendants, TANISHA W RIGHT and

SHALAMAR MAJOR, would and did unjustly erlrich and attempt to emich themselves, by

obtaining, possessing, and utilizing stolen personal identifying information to tile and submit to

the lnternal Revenue Service (lRS), an agency of the United States govemment, false, fictitious,

and fraudulent federal income tax returns claiming tax refunds to which they were not entitled.

M ANNER AND M EANS

The manner and means by which the defendants sought to accomplish the object of the

conspiracy, included the following:

2. Defendant SHALAM AR M AJOR was employed as a scheduler at the Boca

Raton Regional Hospital in Boca Raton, Florida. As a scheduler, she had access to personal

identification infonnation of Boca Raton Regional Hospital patients, including their names, dates

of birth, social security num bers, and other sensitive personal infonnation.

In exchange for the prom ise of future payments, SHALAM AR M AJOR

unlawfully provided TANISHA W RIG HT sensitive personal identifying information, including

names, dates of birth, and social security numbers, of numerous Boca Raton Regional Hospital

patients.

TANISHA W RIG HT, upon receipt of the sensitive personal identifying

infonnation of the Boca Raton Regional Hospital patients, utilized this infonuation to file false,

fictitious, and fraudulent federal income tax returns without the knowledge or authorization of

the Boca Raton Regional Hospital patients, utilizing on-line tax preparation sohware via the

intenwt, through either the intemet connection located at her residence or other unsecured or
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public wireless access points, and thereafter claim ed reftmds to which she was not entitled from

the IRS.

TANISH A W RIGHT thereafter directed the lRS that the fraudulently claim ed

refunds be direct deposited onto pre-paid reloadable debit cards that were already in her

possession. Once the debit cards had been funded by the Department of the Treasury,

TANISHA W RIGHT would thereafter convert the funds on the debit cards to cash by making

withdrawals at local automated teller machines (ATM's) or would utilize the debit cards herself

to make personal purchases at various local businesses.

Once TANISHA W RIGHT obtained cash from the fraudulently funded debit

cards, she would split the proceeds with SHALAM AR M AJOR .

A11 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 286.

A TRUE BILL

,>  '

x v zW .z/z
W IFREDO .FERRER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

M ARC S. ANTON
ASSISTANT U.S ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

VS.

TANISHA W RIGHT and
SHALAMAR MAJOR,

Defendants.
I

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE O F TRIAL ATTORNEY*

Superseding Case lnformation:

Court Division: (select One)

Miami Ke W est
x FTL W)B FTP

I do hereby cedify that:

New Defendantts) Yes No
Number of New Defendants
Total number of counts

I have carefully considered the allegations 9f the indictmqnt, the number qf defendants, the number of
probable witnesses and the Iegal complexlties of the Indlctment/lnformatlon attached hereto.

I am Mware that the information supplied gn thij qtaterpent will be relied upon yb the Ju gd es of this
the Speed-yTrial Act,Court In setting theirçalendarsand schedullng crlmlnal trlals underthe mandateof

Title 28 U.S.C. Sectlon 3161.

Iqterpreter: (Yes gr No) NnL
1st language and/or dlalect '

This case will take 2. days for the parties to try.

Please check appropriate category and Npe of offense Iisted below:

3.

4 .

5.

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) Nn
If yes:
Judge: Case No.
(Attach copy 9f dispositive grdeç)H
as a complalnt been filed In thls matter? (YeS Or NO) NnIf 
yej:M
aglstrate Case No.

Related Misc:llaneous numbers:
Defendantts) ln federal custody as of
Defendantts) In state custody as of
Rule 20 from the District of

Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No)

(Check only one)

0 to 5 days
6 to 10 days
11 to 20 days
21 to 60 days
61 days and over

(Check only one)

Petty
Minor
Misdem.
Felony

Doesthiscase or gi inate from a matter pending in the Nodhern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior
003? Yes X Noto October 14, 2

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior
D07? Yes Y' Noto September 1 , 2

8.

*penalty Sheetts) attached

MARC .S ANTON
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
Florida Bar No./coud No. 0148369

REV 4/8/08
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PEN ALTY SHEET

Defendantfs Nam e: TANISH A W RIGHT

Count #: 1

Access Device Fraud'.

Case No:

ln violation of Title 18. United States Code. Sedion 1029(a)(3)

* M ax. Penalty: 10 vears' lmprisonment'. $250.000 fine or not more than the greater of twice
the cross cain or twice the aross loss ', and 3 vears' supervised release

Count #: 2, 5, 8

ln violation of Title 18- United States Code. Section 1028(a)(7)

* M ax. Penalty: 15 years' lmprisonment'. $250.000 fine or not more than the greater of twice
the gross gain or twice the gross loss: and 3 years' supervised release

Count #: 3, 6, 9

Theft of Public M oney:

ln violation of Title 1 8- United States Code. Section 641

* M ax. Penalty: 10 years' lmprisonment: $250.000 fine or not more than the zreater of twice
the gross gain or twice the gross loss'. and 3 years' supervised release

Count #: 4, 7, 10

Aggravated ldentity Theft;

ln violation of Title 18. United States Code. Section 1028A

* M ax. Penalty: 2 years' lmprisonment consecutive to any other sentence imposed: $250,000
fine: and 1 years' supelwised release
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT O F FLO RIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: TANISHA W RIGHT

Count #: 1 1

Theft of M ail;

Case No:

ln violation of Title 1 8. United States Code. Section 1708

* M ax. Penalty: 5 years' lmprisonment: $250.000 fine: and 3 years' supervised release

Count #: 13

Conspiracy to Commit False Claim s:

ln violation of Title 1 8. United States Code. Section 286

* M ax. Penalty: 10 years' lmprisonment: $250.000 fine or not more than the greater of twice
the gross gain or twice the gross loss'. and 3 vears' supervised release

Count #:

* M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

* M ax. Penalty:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: SHALAM AR M AJOR

Count #: 12

Unauthorized HIPAA Disclosures:

ln violation of Title 42. United States Code. Section 1320d-6

Case No:

* M ax. Penalty: 10 years' Imprisonment: $250.000 fine'. and 3 years' supervised release

Count #: 1 3

Conspiracy to Com mit False Claim ss'

In violation of Title 18. United States Code. Section 286

* M ax. Penalty: 10 years' lmprisonment'. $250.000 fine or not more than the greater of twice
the gross gain or twice the gross loss: and 3 years' supervised release

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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